

# United States Attorneys Bulletin



*Published by Executive Office for United States Attorneys  
Department of Justice, Washington, D.C.*

VOLUME 19

MARCH 5, 1971

NO. 5

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<u>Page</u>
POINTS TO REMEMBER Criminal Appeals by the Govt.	121
ANTITRUST DIVISION SHERMAN ACT Jail Sentences Imposed on Two Individuals	<u>U.S. v. Bengimina</u> (W.D. Mo.) 122
CRIMINAL DIVISION BANK ROBBERY - 18 U.S.C. 2113(a) and (c) Plain Error to Convict for Both Larceny and Receiving Under Bank Robbery Statute	<u>U.S. v. Suel</u> (C.A. 5) 125
BANKING FRAUD Misuse of Bank's Funds for Its Own Purchase	<u>U.S. v. Gordon</u> (C.A. 5) 126
IMMIGRATION Denial of Injunction to Prevent Deportation Proceedings Upheld	<u>Massignani v. I &amp; N</u> (C.A. 7) 127
LAND & NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION MARINE RESOURCES; INJUNCTIONS State Court Proceedings Against Fed. Lessees Enjoined; Outer Continental Shelf	<u>Union Oil Co. of Cal.</u> <u>v. Minier</u> (C.A. 9) 128
INDIANS; APPEALS Tribal Members' Prescriptive Right to Use Road Across Al- lotted Lands Within Reserva- tion; Clearly Erroneous Rule	<u>Confederated Salish &amp;</u> <u>Kootenai Tribes of</u> <u>Flathead Reservation</u> <u>v. Vulles</u> (C.A. 9) 128
TUCKER ACT; APPEALS Selection of Timber Scale in Timber Valuation; Clearly Erroneous Rule	<u>Taylor v. U.S.</u> (C.A. 4) 129

	<u>Page</u>
<b>MINES AND MINERALS</b>	
Injunction Against Mining and Exploratory Operations Pending Administrative Determination as to Validity of Mining Claims	<u>U.S. v. Foresyth</u> (D. Colo.) 129
<b>URBAN RENEWAL; INJUNCTIONS</b>	
Injunction Denied Against HUD and Secy. Romney From Approving Actions of Norfolk Housing and Redevelopment Authority; St. Ct. Proceedings	<u>McCollough v. HUD</u> (E. D. Va.) 130
<b>MINES AND MINERALS</b>	
Jurisdiction of Dist. Ct. to Eject Mining Claimants From Land Claimed Without Interior Administratively Ruling on Validity of Mining Claim	<u>U.S. v. Henrikson</u> (E. D. Cal.) 131
<b>HIGHWAYS</b>	
Replacement Housing Payment May Not Be Denied on Sole Grounds That Applicant Moved Prior to Location of Highway	<u>U.S. v. Braddy</u> (D. Ore.) 132
<b>FEDERAL RULES OF CRIMINAL PROCEDURE</b>	
<b>RULE 6: The Grand Jury</b>	
(e) Secrecy of Proceedings and Disclosure	<u>Harris v. U.S.</u> (C.A. D.C.) 135
<b>RULE 7: The Indictment and the Information</b>	
(c) Nature and Contents	<u>U.S. v. Little</u> (D. Dela.) 137
<b>RULE 8: Joinder of Offenses and of Defendants</b>	
(a) Joinder of Offenses	<u>Bradley v. U.S.</u> (C.A. D.C.) 139
<b>RULE 11: Pleas</b>	<u>U.S. v. Malcolm</u> (C.A. 2) 142

	<u>Page</u>
RULE 12: Pleadings and Motions Before Trial; Defenses and Objections	
(b) The Motion Raising	
(2) Defenses and Objec- tions Which Must Be Raised	<u>U.S. v. Internat'l. Minerals &amp; Chemical (S.D. Ohio)</u> 143
RULE 14: Relief from Prejudicial Joinder	<u>Bradley v. U.S. (C.A. D.C.)</u> 145
RULE 24: Trial Jurors	
(a) Examination	<u>U.S. v. Anderson (C.A. 8)</u> 147
RULE 26: Evidence	<u>U.S. v. O'Connor (C.A. 1)</u> 149
RULE 29: Motion for Judgment of Acquittal	
(a) Motion Before Submission to Jury	<u>U.S. v. Capocci (C.A. 1)</u> 151
RULE 32: Sentence and Judgment	
(a) Sentence	<u>U.S. v. Malcolm (C.A. 2)</u> 153
RULE 35: Correction or Reduction of Sentence	<u>U.S. v. Malcolm (C.A. 2)</u> 155
RULE 40: Commitment to Another District; Removal	
(b) Arrest in Distant District	<u>U.S. v. Perkins, et al. (C.A. D.C.)</u> 157
RULE 48: Dismissal	
(b) By Court	<u>Kroll v. U.S. (C.A. 5)</u> 159
RULE 51: Exceptions Unnecessary	<u>U.S. v. Schroeder, et al. (C.A. 8)</u> 161
RULE 52: Harmless Error and Plain Error	
(b) Plain Error	<u>U.S. v. Schroeder, et al. (C.A. 8)</u> 163

POINTS TO REMEMBER

CRIMINAL APPEALS BY THE GOVERNMENT:

Title III of the Omnibus Crime Control Act of 1970 (P. L. 91-644)

18 U. S. C. 3731, governing the right of the United States to appeal certain judgments and orders in criminal cases, has been amended by Title III of the Omnibus Crime Control Act of 1970 to allow the United States to appeal to a Court of Appeals any district court dismissal of an indictment or information or any count thereof, except as limited by the constitutional bar against double jeopardy. The Act, which became effective on January 2, 1971, provides that it shall apply to all cases "begun" after its effective date. The Department of Justice is taking the position that the term "case begun" refers to the date the indictment or information was returned.

The new statute expands the Government's right to appeal to the constitutional limit. Thus, many types of dismissals which formerly were not appealable to any court may now be appealed. Included are dismissals entered even after jeopardy has attached (i. e., after the swearing of the jury in a jury trial or the introduction of evidence in a non-jury trial), as long as such dismissals are not, in fact, acquittals. Compare United States v. Sisson, 339 U. S. 267, and Fong Foo v. United States, 369 U. S. 141. Similarly the limitations on the Government's right to appeal spelled out in United States v. Apex Distributing Co., 270 F. 2d 747 (C. A. 9), are no longer in force.

All appeals under the new Act go to the Courts of Appeals, unlike the prior statute which embodied a complicated system whereby some appeals had to be taken directly to the Supreme Court.

Authorization to appeal will still have to be obtained from the Office of the Solicitor General. The decision whether to appeal a dismissal will be referred initially to the Appellate Section of the Criminal Division, which may be consulted on any problems concerning appeals by the Government.

\* \* \*

ANTITRUST DIVISION  
Assistant Attorney General Richard W. McLaren

DISTRICT COURT

SHERMAN ACT

JAIL SENTENCES IMPOSED ON TWO INDIVIDUALS.

United States v. Charles W. Bengimina, et al. (W. D. Mo.,  
Cr. 23078-1; March 30, 1970; D. J. 60-23-34)

On February 2, 1971, District Court Judge John W. Oliver, Kansas City, Missouri, imposed three months and one month prison terms on two individual defendants in the above-captioned case.

The indictment was returned by a Federal grand jury in Kansas City, Missouri, on March 30, 1970 and charged that the defendants Charles W. Bengimina, B & G Cigarette Vending Company, B & G Amusement Company, Nicholas Evola, Paramount Music Company, Inc., and Kansas City Music Operators Association had conspired among themselves and with other co-conspirators to suppress and exclude competition in the solicitation and acceptance of coin vending machine business, and to increase and fix the prices of vending machine products (record plays in juke boxes and cigarettes). The indictment further charged that the defendants, in furtherance of the conspiracy,

used threats, coercion and persuasion to prevent and attempt to prevent vending machine operators from soliciting locations of other vending machine operators or expanding their vending machine businesses;

and

used threats, coercion and persuasion to prevent and attempt to prevent location owners or managers from discontinuing the use of the vending machines and vending machine products of the defendants and co-conspirators.

Bengimina is a partner in the two B & G companies, and Evola is president and a principal shareholder of Paramount. Both Bengimina and Evola and their respective companies are named in a 1970 Kansas City Crime Commission publication listing individuals and businesses associated with organized crime in Kansas City. The matter was referred to the Division for investigation following an anti-racketeering

investigation in the Kansas City area by the FBI under supervision of the United States Attorney for the Western District of Missouri.

On October 7, 1970, over the Government's objection, Judge Oliver granted motions of all defendants to change their pleas from not guilty to nolo contendere. Trial had been set to commence on October 13, 1970.

In imposing sentences Judge Oliver spoke at length regarding the criteria which a Federal judge should consider in determining prison sentences and fines. The primary sources for these criteria were the 1967 Report of the President's Commission on Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice, Section 2(c) of the American Bar Association's Sentencing Standards, Section 7.01 of the American Law Institute Model Penal Code and Sections 3101(2), 3101(3), and 3301 of the new Proposed Federal Criminal Code which was recently submitted to President Nixon.

One of the factors that Judge Oliver stated influenced him to sentence Bengimina to serve months in prison was his failure to controvert the Government's contentions that he provided inaccurate information to FBI agents who interviewed him concerning the existence of the Association by-law prohibiting Association members from soliciting and accepting business from each other's customers, which every other Association member, including Evola, admitted was adhered to, and Bengimina's suggestion to other Association members that if called before the Grand Jury investigating the case they should testify that the nonsolicitation agreement was an old rule no longer adhered to by Association members. Other factors considered by the judge were that no reparations had been made to victims of defendants' criminal activities, and defendants' use of threats, coercion and persuasion in furthering their illegal agreements. Judge Oliver declined to give much weight to "good character" letters from "prominent" community citizens because these same types of persons have generally urged on the court maximum sentences for non-white collar crimes.

The following prison sentences were imposed:

Charles W. Bengimina - One year, of which three months are to be served and nine months suspended. He was placed on probation for three years.

Nicholas Evola - One year, of which one month is to be served and eleven months suspended. He was placed on probation for three years.

Jail sentences are to commence on March 8, 1971.

The following fines were assessed:

Charles W. Bengimina - \$10,000

Nicholas Evola - \$ 7,500

B & G Cigarette  
Vending Company - \$10,000

B & G Amusement  
Company - \$ 5,000

Paramount Music  
Company, Inc. - \$10,000

Kansas City Music  
Operators Association - \$ 2,500

Staff: Thomas S. Howard, Ronald L. Futterman, and  
James J. Kubik (Antitrust Division)

\*

\*

\*

CRIMINAL DIVISION  
Assistant Attorney General Will Wilson

COURTS OF APPEALS

BANK ROBBERY - 18 U.S.C. 2113(a) and (c)

PLAIN ERROR TO CONVICT FOR BOTH LARCENY AND RECEIVING UNDER BANK ROBBERY STATUTE.

United States v. Suel (C.A. 5, No. 27, 958; December 21, 1970; D.J. 29-100-2441)

In United States v. Suel the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals held that conviction of a defendant for violation of both 18 U.S.C. 2113(a)(robbery) and (c)(receiving the proceeds) is inconsistent and constitutes reversible error. Reversal is required even though the trial judge did not sentence for the counts charging a violation of subsection (c).

The Court cited Thomas v. United States, 5th Cir., 1969, 418 F. 2d 567, as controlling. Thomas held it plain error under Milanovich v. United States, 1961, 365 U.S. 551, for trial court to instruct the jury that they might find the defendant guilty of both larceny under 2113(a) and (b) and receiving the proceeds of that larceny under 2113(c).

In Keating v. United States, 6th Cir., 1969, 413 F. 2d 1028 the same question arose in a §2255 proceeding. The trial judge had sentenced the defendant to 15 years on the robbery count and 10 years on the receiving count. The Court remedied this error by setting aside the convictions and sentences and then dismissing the robbery counts and resentencing on the receiving counts. However, the Court recognized that, had the issue been raised on direct appeal, the proper remedy would have been to grant a new trial.

In view of these holdings, utmost care should be taken in drafting instructions to make it clear that the jury cannot return a conviction under both 18 U.S.C. 2113(a) and (c).

Staff: United States Attorney Seagal V. Wheatley and  
Assistant United States Attorney Jeremiah Handy  
(W.D. Texas)

BANKING FRAUD

## MISUSE OF A BANK'S FUNDS FOR ITS OWN PURCHASE.

United States v. Milton Gordon (C. A. 5, January 13, 1971;  
No. 25973; D. J. 29-18-589)

The Court, in an extensive opinion, affirmed the conviction of 9 of 10 defendants on an indictment charging conspiracy to misapply and to make false entries in the records of the Five Points National Bank of Miami, Florida, and seven substantive counts of misapplication in violation of 18 U. S. C. 656. The evidence indicates a classic example of individuals purchasing a bank with its own funds.

The defendants financed the purchase of Five Points by undertaking obligations and securing loans at local banks. These obligations were subsequently repaid by funds generated by fraudulent unsecured loans made to the defendants or their nominees, from Five Points.

It is significant to note that one of the bank officers who processed many of the loans and renewals received little personal benefit. Nevertheless, the Court felt that the bank officer played an integral and indispensable role and but for his participation the scheme would have failed.

The Court discussed and discounted numerous allegations of error which were focused primarily on the conduct of the trial judge and his alleged bias.

The Government in concluding its case-in-chief called its expert witness who presented charts tracing the transactions and summarized the evidence. The Court held that this procedure did not "usurp the exclusive function of the jury" as it was a necessary and useful aid in understanding the complex testimony and exhibits already before the Court.

The Court reversed the conviction of one of the defendants on the basis that there was sufficient evidence to warrant a jury instruction on the issue of insanity. The Court disregarded the Government's argument that there was no evidence to rebut the presumption of sanity in the legal sense (i. e., capacity), and held that under the law in this circuit only slight evidence of a "defect" was necessary to warrant the jury's consideration of the issue.

Staff: United States Attorney Robert W. Rust; Assistant  
United States Attorney Michael J. Osman (S. D. Fla.)  
and Robert B. Serino (Criminal Division)

IMMIGRATION

## DENIAL OF INJUNCTION TO PREVENT DEPORTATION PROCEEDINGS UPHeld.

Mary Lou Massignani v. Immigration and Naturalization Service, et al. (C. A. 7, No. 18527; January 21, 1971; D. J. 39-85-34)

The alien plaintiff appealed from an order of the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Wisconsin (reported at 313 F. Supp. 251) denying her motion for a preliminary injunction to enjoin the Immigration and Naturalization Service from commencing deportation proceedings against her. Prior to this action, the Immigration Service's District Director had denied her application to remain in the United States as a permanent resident because her name, among many others, had appeared in a newspaper advertisement supporting individuals who sought destruction of selective service records in Milwaukee.

The Court of Appeals, like the district court, never reached the merits despite the contentions of the appellant that her activity was constitutionally protected by the First Amendment. It found that if her rights had been violated, they could be challenged in the deportation process where her application for permanent residence could be resubmitted. Judicial review could be sought if the administrative decision was again adverse.

Staff: United States Attorney David J. Cannon and  
Assistant United States Attorney Richard E.  
Reilly (E. D. Wisc.)

\* \* \*

LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES DIVISION  
Assistant Attorney General Shiro Kashiwa

COURTS OF APPEALS

MARINE RESOURCES; INJUNCTIONS

STATE COURT PROCEEDINGS AGAINST FEDERAL LESSEES EN-  
JOINED; OUTER CONTINENTAL SHELF.

Union Oil Co. of Cal. v. David D. Minier (C.A. 9, Nos. 25045-  
25048; December 3, 1970; D. J. 90-1-18-847)

A county prosecuting attorney filed criminal nuisance actions in the local California state court against four major oil companies for activities connected with drilling in the Santa Barbara Channel under Federal leases.

The Ninth Circuit affirmed a district court injunction against the local criminal suits on the grounds that under the circumstances they constituted interference with the Federal development of resources of the outer continental shelf. As requested, the Court carefully avoided broad discussion of Federal Court jurisdiction over such controversies and limited its holding to the specific facts of these cases.

Staff: Edmund B. Clark (Land and Natural Resources  
Division)

INDIANS; APPEALS

TRIBAL MEMBERS' PRESCRIPTIVE RIGHT TO USE ROAD ACROSS  
ALLOTTED LANDS WITHIN RESERVATION; CLEARLY ERRONEOUS  
RULE.

Confederated Salish & Kootenai Tribes of the Flathead Reservation  
v. Vulles (C.A. 9, No. 23398; January 28, 1971; D. J. 90-2-3-315)

The United States as trustee sought to enjoin obstruction of a road across allotted lands (now owned by non-Indians) within the reservation. The road afforded access to tribal lands. Damages for past obstruction were also sought. The Tribes intervened. While awarding damages and declaring rights to use the road for some purposes, the district court denied tribal members use of the road as access to tribal lands for hunting, berrying and recreation. The Tribes alone appealed from the denial.

The Court of Appeals reversed that portion of the judgment. It reviewed the evidence and ruled that the district court's denial of a right of way by prescription for such tribal uses was clearly erroneous.

Staff: Raymond N. Zagone (Land and Natural Resources Division)

### TUCKER ACT; APPEALS

SELECTION OF TIMBER SCALE IN TIMBER VALUATION; CLEARLY ERRONEOUS RULE.

Taylor v. United States (C. A. 4, No. 14834; December 21, 1970; D. J. 90-1-23-1354)

Under the Tucker Act, the landowner sought to recover the value of trees cut by the United States.

The United States appealed from a district court timber valuation wherein a small scale was used to determine the number of units of timber cut, and then the price from a large timber scale used to determine the unit price. In a two-sentence opinion, the Court of Appeals found that procedure not clearly erroneous.

Staff: Carl Strass (Land and Natural Resources Division)

### DISTRICT COURTS

#### MINES AND MINERALS

INJUNCTION AGAINST MINING AND EXPLORATORY OPERATIONS PENDING ADMINISTRATIVE DETERMINATION AS TO VALIDITY OF MINING CLAIMS.

United States v. Harlan H. Foresyth, et al. (D. Colo., No. C-1863; January 14, 1971; D. J. 90-1-18-869)

The Government here sought an injunction prohibiting defendants from continuing to mine or explore for limestone on forest lands during the pendency of the administrative proceedings to determine the validity of the mining claims. Two bases were urged for the injunction. First, that the core drilling, etc., which defendants proposed and intended to conduct, would cause great and irreparable damage to the land and, second, that by virtue of a properly filed and recorded request for withdrawal of the lands in question, such lands had been temporarily segregated

"from settlement location, sale, entry, lease, and other forms of disposal under the public land laws". The claims here involved are located in Pike National Forest which area has certain scenic and recreational values and, therefore, this dispute may be said to have certain ecological undertones.

The court granted a temporary injunction against any activity on the claims involved in the suit pending administrative determination of their validity, citing as authority United States v. Barrows, 404 F.2d 749 (C.A. 9, 1968).

The defendants by way of counterclaim requested the court to declare the purported request for withdrawal, void and of no effect as to them. The court denied defendants' counterclaim on the ground that there had been no waiver of sovereign immunity, which immunity extends to counterclaims. It was the court's view that it was not necessary to determine the withdrawal question in order to issue the temporary injunction since the first ground asserted by the United States, i. e., irreparable injury to Government-owned lands, was sufficient.

Staff: United States Attorney James L. Treece and  
Assistant United States Attorney Leonard W. D.  
Campbell (D. Colo.)

#### URBAN RENEWAL; INJUNCTIONS

INJUNCTION DENIED AGAINST HUD AND SECRETARY ROMNEY FROM APPROVING ACTIONS OF NORFOLK HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY; STATE COURT PROCEEDINGS.

Bishop McCollough v. HUD, et al. (E. D. Va., No. 690-70-N; January 6, 1971; D. J. 90-1-4-255)

In this suit the plaintiff sought an injunction against the Norfolk Redevelopment and Housing Authority, Secretary Romney and HUD. Plaintiff alleged that the Norfolk Housing Authority instituted condemnation proceedings in the Corporation Court of the City of Norfolk to acquire a fee simple interest in plaintiff's property, despite the fact that the authority needed only a limited interest for the use contemplated.

Plaintiff asked for an injunction against the condemnation proceeding in the corporation court and sought to enjoin Secretary Romney and HUD from approving the actions of the Norfolk Authority.

The court ruled, in dismissing the complaint, that the Federal defendants had already approved acquisitions of plaintiff's property and that there was no action on the part of the Federal defendants to be enjoined.

The court dismissed the complaint against the Norfolk Redevelopment and Housing Authority and ruled that the issues raised by the plaintiff were heard and decided in the state court and could not be re-litigated. The court also held that 22 U. S. C. 2283 prohibited a Federal court from enjoining state court proceedings.

Staff: Assistant United States Attorney John A. Field, III  
(E. D. Va.) and Anthony S. Borwick (Land and Natural  
Resources Division)

### MINES AND MINERALS

JURISDICTION OF DISTRICT COURT TO EJECT MINING CLAIM-ANTS FROM LAND CLAIMED WITHOUT INTERIOR ADMINISTRATIVELY RULING ON VALIDITY OF MINING CLAIM.

United States v. Henrikson (E. D. Cal., Civ. 9912; December 24, 1970; D. J. 90-1-1-1991)

In May 1964, the district court sustained a decision by the Secretary of the Interior that defendants' placer mining claim dating from 1953 was null and void for lack of discovery (229 F. Supp. 510); the Court of Appeals sustained this decision in November 1965 (350 F. 2d 949) and in May 1966 the Supreme Court denied certiorari. Thereafter, in August 1966 a complaint was filed to eject the defendants from the land covered by the voided mining claim and to recover damages for their occupancy.

The defendants asserted that they have a valid mill site location as to the land involved. The notice of the mill site location was recorded in December 1967. The land was withdrawn from appropriation by an executive order of March 12, 1959.

An initial decision of the trial court held that the United States could not press its action for ejectment since the Department of the Interior had the primary responsibility for evaluating the validity of the mill site location. The United States filed a subsequent motion for summary judgment on the mill site issue urging that the initial decision was based upon mistakes of fact and law. The district court has now ruled that the mill

site location was invalid, and that the United States is entitled to recover possession of the land. The defendants have filed a notice of appeal.

The trial court in granting the order for ejectment relied upon the Ninth Circuit decision in United States v. Nogueira, 403 F. 2d 816 (1968). The trial court relied upon the following language in Nogueira:

We draw \* \* \* the conclusion that while a proceeding on a claim is pending the courts will not entertain actions by private litigants seeking to restrain the Department, compel its decision or interfere with the administrative processes; that the authorities do not hold that the government has no right to enter the United States courts, set up particularly for the handling of government cases, and seek to vindicate its rights to title, its rights to possession or damages for waste or trespass upon land, the title of which is in the government.

The trial court recognized that this language was dictum within the Nogueira decision, but stated that it was "extensive and well-considered dictum and appears to the Court to be a sound analysis of the question".

After determining it had jurisdiction, the trial court held the mill site location to be invalid for several reasons, one of which was that the land was withdrawn at the time of the purported location.

Staff: Special Assistant United States Attorney  
J. Harold Weise (E. D. Cal.)

#### HIGHWAYS

REPLACEMENT HOUSING PAYMENT MAY NOT BE DENIED ON SOLE GROUNDS THAT APPLICANT MOVED PRIOR TO LOCATION OF HIGHWAY.

United States v. Leon L. Braddy, et al. (D. Ore., No. 70-707; January 14, 1971; D. J. 90-1-23-1582)

In this suit the United States sought a judgment declaring that the individual defendants were not "displaced persons" within the meaning of the Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1968, 23 U. S. C. 501 et seq., and therefore were not entitled to a replacement housing payment from defendant State of Oregon pursuant to Section 506(a) of the Act. The State of Oregon had denied the individual defendants a replacement

housing payment on the grounds that they had moved six months prior to the public hearings which ultimately led to the designation of the route for the proposed Mt. Hood Freeway in Oregon.

The Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1968, 23 U. S. C. 511 (3), defines a "displaced person" entitled to relocation payments as one who moves from real property as a result of its acquisition or with a "reasonable expectation" of its acquisition by the state. Paragraph 17(c) of the Department of Transportation's Instructional Memorandum 80-1-68 to the states defines moving with "reasonable expectation" as moving after notification by the state highway department of imminent acquisition or after the location of the highway has been definitely established and approved by the state agency.

The court, in dismissing the complaint, ruled that paragraph 17(c) of IM 80-1-68 was unduly restrictive and that denying a relocation payment to persons solely for the reason that they had moved prior to the establishment of the location of the highway was arbitrary and unreasonable.

Staff: Special Assistant United States Attorney Vinita Jo  
Neal (D. Ore.) and Jonathan U. Burdick (Land and  
Natural Resources Division)

\*

\*

\*